
 
         

CITY OF SWEET HOME  
CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA   
January 22, 2019, 6:30 p.m. 
Sweet Home Police Department, 1950 Main Street 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 

 
 PLEASE silence all cell phones – Anyone who wishes to speak, please sign in. 
 
A. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
B. Roll Call:             

Councilor Coleman   Mayor Mahler  
   Councilor Gerson   Councilor Nash  
   Councilor Goble   Councilor Trask 
   Councilor Gourley 

 
C. Consent Agenda: 

a) Approval of Minutes: January 8, 2019 City Council (pg. 3-6) 
           

D. Recognition of Visitors and Hearing of Petitions: 
a) Oregon Rain – Corey Wright 

 
E. Old Business: 
 
F. New Business: 

a) PUBLIC HEARING: Appeal to City Council of a Planning Commission Decision for VR 
18-07, a Variance in order to build a 1,728 sq. ft. personal shop in an R-1 Zone. (pg.7-59 ) 

b) Public Hearing: Supplemental Budget Police vehicle – Resolution No. 3 for 2019 (pg. 60-61 ) 
c) Request for Council Action – Resolution No. 4 for 2019 – Revised LEP for the City of 

Sweet Home (pg. 62-87) 
d) Request for Council Action – Appointment to the Planning Commission (pg. 88-92) 
e) Request for Council Action – Contract for Software License – CMI (pg. 93-111) 
f) Information Only – Leak Detection Report (pg. 112-126) 

 
G. Ordinance Bills 

i. Introduction and Request for Ordinance  
ii. First Reading of Ordinance Bills  
iii. Second Reading of Ordinance Bills 
iv. Third Reading of Ordinance Bills (Roll Call Vote Required) 

 
H. Reports of Committees: 

a) Mayor’s Report 
b) City Manager’s Report 

WIFI Passcode: 
guestwifi 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 1



c) Department Director’s Reports: 
i. Finance Director 

            (1) City Q2 Department Report (pg. 127-130) 
ii. Library Services Director 
iii. Community and Economic Development Director  
iv. Police Chief 
v. Public Works Director 
vi. City Attorney’s Report  

 
I. Reports of City Officials:  
Administrative & Finance/Property (Minutes 01-15-19)(pg. 131) Goble 
Public Safety/Traffic Safety   
Public Works Mahler 
Park and Tree Committee (Minutes 12-19-18)(pg. 132-192) Trask 
Youth Advisory Council Gourley 
Chamber of Commerce Coleman 
Council of Governments  Gerson 
Area Commission on Transportation  
Solid Waste Advisory Council Goble 
Ad Hoc Committee on Health  Gourley 
 
J. Council Business for Good of the Order: 
 
K. Adjournment  

 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 2



SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
January 8, 2019 

 
Mayor Mahler called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Sweet Home Police Department. The Pledge 
of Allegiance was recited. 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Ray Towry, Library Services Director Rose Peda, City Attorney Robert 
Snyder, Community and Economic Development Director Jerry Sorte, Public Works Director Greg 
Springman, Police Chief Jeff Lynn, Finance Director Brandon Neish and Recording Secretary Julie 
Fisher. 
 
Visitors Registered to Speak: None 
 
Media: Sean Morgan, The New Era  
            Alex Paul, Albany Democrat Herald 
 

Swearing in of Council Elects: City Manager Ray Towry swore in the Council Elects: Greg Mahler, Susan 
Coleman, Diane Gerson for a four-year term and Cortney Nash for a two-year term. 
 

         
Roll Call: Councilor Coleman P  Mayor Mahler             P 
  Councilor Gerson P  Councilor Nash P    
  Councilor Goble P  Councilor  Trask P    
  Councilor Gourley P 
 

 

Consent Agenda: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recognition of Visitors & Hearing 

of Petition: 

 

Old Business: 

 
New Business: 

 
Nominations for 2019 Mayor and 
Council Election of 2019 Mayor 
 
 
 
Nomination for 2019 Pro Tem and  
Council Election of 2019 Pro Tem 
 
 
 
 

 

Motion was made to approve the Consent Agenda as 

submitted (Trask/Goble). Motion passed with 7 Ayes, 0 

Opposed, 0 Absent. 

 
Items on the consent agenda are as follows: 
Approval of Minutes:  December 11, 2018 – Regular Meeting 
                                  December 18, 2018 – Executive Session 
                                  December 18, 2018 – Special Meeting 
 
None 
 
None 
 
 
 
Pro Tem Trask opened the floor for nominations for 2019 Mayor. 
Nomination for Greg Mahler (Mahler/Gourley) 
Nomination for James Goble (Goble) 
A unanimous vote for Greg Mahler as Mayor was recorded. 
 
Pro Tem Trask opened the floor for nominations for 2019 Pro 
Tem. 
Nomination for Dave Trask (Mahler) 
Nomination for Diane Gerson (Gourley) 
Vote for Trask as Pro Tem (Trask, Nash, Mahler) 
Vote for Gerson as Pro Tem (Gourley, Goble, Gerson, Coleman) 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 3



Public Hearing:  

Appeal to City Council of a 

Planning Commission Decision 

for VR 18-07, a Variance in order 

to build a 1,728 sq. ft. personal 

shop in an R-1 Zone. 

 
 
Request for Council Action – 

Resolution No. 1 for 2019 – 

Sweetheart Run Road Closures. 

 
 
 
 
 
Request for Council Action – 

Resolution No. 2 for 2019 – 

Revised Fiscal Policy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Request for Council Action – IGA 

Oregon Cascades West Council 

of Governments and Sweet Home 

Teleworking Space. 

 

 

 

 

 

Information Only: City of Sweet 

Home Limited English Proficiency 

Plan Update. 

 
 
Request for Council Action and 

First Reading of Ordinance Bills: 

 

Second Reading: 

 

Third and Final Reading of 

Ordinance Bills: 

  

The Public Hearing was opened at 6:39 pm.  
 
Mayor Mahler stated the Public Hearing will be continued until 
January 22, 2019 at 6:30 in order to allow time for additional 
notification of the hearing.  Public Testimony will be received at 
the January 22, 2019 continued hearing. 
 
 
Community and Economic Development Director Sorte 
introduced the request for the road closures for safety purposes 
for the Sweetheart Run participants. 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1 for 2019 – Sweetheart 

Run Road Closures (Gerson/Trask). Motion passed with 7 

Ayes, 0 Opposed and 0 Absent. 
 
Finance Director Neish introduced the Revised Fiscal Policies for 
the City of Sweet Home which increases capitalization threshold 
from the current $200 to the proposed $5,000. 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 2 for 2019 – A Resolution 

Adopting Policy Revisions in the City’s Financial Policy 

(Coleman/Gourley).  Motion passed with 7 Ayes, 0 Opposed 

and 0 Absent. 

 
City Manager Towry introduced the request to allow the Oregon 
Cascades West Council of Governments space in City Hall for 
their staff who will be providing services to Sweet Home citizens. 
 
Motion to authorize the Intergovernmental Agreement 

between Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments 

and Sweet Home for Teleworking Space (Gourley/Coleman). 

Motion passed with 7 Ayes, 0 Opposed and 0 Absent. 

 
City Manager Towry explained the Limited English Proficiency 
Plan was due for updates.  The draft document was provided for 
Council’s review and the final document will be before Council at 
the next meeting. 
 
 
None 
 
None 
 
None 

 

 
Mayor’s Report  
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
 

 
Mayor Mahler thanked the Council for support as Mayor.   
 
City Manager Towry announced a Work Session to review Council 
Goals is due, generally that Council training occurs around 
Valentines Day. CM Towry stated an email with proposed dates 
will be sent out. An Administration, Finance and Property 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 4



Committee meeting is coming to further discuss bulk water rates.   
City Manager Towry reported on the All Staff Meeting where staff 
received a half day of training on the new Personnel Policies, 
reviewed accomplishments from the past year and received a 
video message from motivational speaker Coach Willis. 

 
Department Directors Reports: 

 
Finance Director 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Library Director 
 
 

Community and Economic 
Development Director 

 
 
 
 
 

Police Chief 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Works 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     City Attorney  

 
 
 
Finance Director Neish reported 96 accounts were scheduled for 
shut off which is a typical number for January, after holidays.  FD 
Neish reviewed the finance reports included in the packet.  FD 
Neish reported a public auction site was used to surplus items 
from Public Works and the Police Department.  17 items were sold 
brining in $18,588, which was more than staff expected for those 
items. 
 
Library Services Director Peda referred to the reports in the 
packet.  There were no questions from the Council. 
 
CEDD Sorter announced a SHARE meeting on Thursday, 9 am at 
the Chamber.   
The Sweetheart Run is on February 9th at 10am at Sankey Park. 
This year the City is partnering with the Rotary Club. 
CEDD Sorte announced he is working with DLCD on a grant for 
FEMA Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan updates to be done in 2020. 
 
Chief Lynn reported on work towards the homeless efforts.  AST – 
Adult Services Team will begin quarterly visits to Sweet Home, 
which is a step on brining resources to East Linn County. 
Chief Lynn reported 2 new officers have been hired and a third 
may be onboard by the 16th. 
Chief Lynn discussed the recent recognition of Officer Potter who 
was recognized for saving the life of a victim of a self-inflicted 
gunshot wound. 
 
PWD Springman reported damage to several areas in a recent 
windstorm. He reported a tree caused damage to the Sankey Park 
Bandstand.  A structural engineer will be brought in to evaluate the 
bandstand to determine how to move forward with repairs.  Two 
vehicles and a wood shed on private property were also damaged 
from trees and limb which fell on the South Hills Trail.  PW is 
working with CTC to make that area safe. 
A report from the Leak Detection work will come forward on the 
next agenda.  There were 68 leaks identified and to date 15 have 
been repaired.  
 
No Report 

Committee Reports: 
 
Administration & Finance/ 
Property Committee 
 
Public/Traffic Safety 
 

 
 
Councilor Goble announced a meeting on January 15th at 5:30pm. 
 
 
No Report 
 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 5



Public Works No Report 

City Boards/Committees: 
 
         Chamber of Commerce 
 
 
          Fire District 
 
          Park & Tree Commission 
 
          Y.A.C.  
 
 
          Ad Hoc Committee  
          Community Healthcare 
 

 
 
Councilor Coleman reported the Annual Award Banquet is 
scheduled for March 16th and will be a Mardi Gras theme. 
  
Councilor Trask reported on the success of the Sharing Tree. 
 
None 
 
Councilor Gourley reported the Youth Leadership Summit is 
scheduled for July 27, 2019. 
 
Councilor Gourley reported the January and February meetings 
have both been postponed one week to avoid holidays. 
 

   Regional Boards/Committees: 
 
Area Commission on Transportation 
(ACT) 
 
Council of Governments (COG) 
 
Solid Waste Advisory Council 
(SWAC) 
 
Council Business for Good of the 
Order: 
 
 
Adjournment: 

 
 
No Report 
 
 
No Report 
 
No Report 
 
 
None 
 
 
With No further business the meeting adjourned at 7:10 PM 

 
The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council at the January 8, 2019 regular City 
Council Meeting. 
 
 
               
                        Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
              
City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 6



 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA:  
January 8, 2019 
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Jerry Sorte, CED Director 
 
REVIEWED BY:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
Public Hearing: Appeal to Planning 
Application Variance VR18-07 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Staff Report for the appeal to VR18-
07 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
      RESOLUTION 
 X   MOTION 
  _  OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:   
 
This RCA provides information pertaining to an appeal by the City Manager of the Planning 
Commission’s decision to approve a variance request to build a 1,728 square foot shop building 
in the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone. The City Council will hold a public hearing and make 
a final local decision on this matter.  
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
 
The applicant, James Pickett, applied under application VR18-07 to build a 1,728 square foot 
shop building in the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone. The maximum floor area for an 
accessory structure in the R-1 zone is 864 square feet. The property is located at 203 5th 
Avenue, Sweet Home, OR 97386. The property is identified on the Linn County Assessor’s Map 
as 13S01E31CD Tax Lot 700, and it contains approximately 1.55 acres. The Staff Report 
(attached) includes maps that depict the property and proposed shop location. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on November 5, 2018 to consider this variance 
request. An opportunity was provided for public testimony at the public hearing. After closing the 
public hearing, the Planning Commission deliberated and voted 3-2 to approve the variance. 
The minutes for the hearing are included as Attachment D to the Staff Report. The Planning 
Commission’s decision is memorialized in the Order of Conditional Approval included as 
Attachment F to the Staff Report.  
 
City Manager Ray Towry filed an appeal to the Planning Commission’s decision on VR18-07 on 
November 30, 2018 under Sweet Home Municipal Code (SHMC) 17.12.050: “The City Manager 
shall have the power and duty to enforce the provisions of this title.” The City Manager cited that 
the decision on VR18-07 did not include adequate findings to demonstrate compliance with all 
of the decision criteria for the application.  The City Manager found that it has not been shown 
that: 

 
“The request is the minimum variance necessary to make reasonable use of the 
property” [SHMC 17.88.040(C)]; 
 
Or that: “The property has a physical circumstance or condition that makes it difficult to 
develop” [SHMC 17.88.040(H)].  

 
A decision on a land use application must be made based on a review of the proposal under all 
of the applicable review and decision criteria. The review and decision criteria are those 
sections of the SHMC that apply to the application and are listed and discussed under Section 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 7



IV of the Staff Report (attached). By their nature, the criteria are discretionary. At this time, the 
role of the City Council will be to hold a public hearing, consider the variance proposal and all 
testimony that is provided, and make a decision on this application. 
 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:    
 
Should the City Council approve or deny this proposal for a variance? The City Council must 
determine if the applicant’s proposal complies with all of the criteria for a variance listed in the 
SHMC; which are provided in Section IV of the Staff Report (attached). 
 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   
 

● Neighboring Property Owners and Residents. The proposed shop building will have the 
most immediate impact on neighborhood surrounding the subject property. Neighbors 
within 100 feet of the property have been notified of this public hearing. 

● City of Sweet Home Residents. Sweet Home residents will be impacted on how the City 
applies its standards for granting variances. The City Council’s decision will be used as 
guidance for future application of the code. 
 

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS:  
 
Comments that have been received in response to this application are included in the Staff 
Report. To date, staff has received one comment from a neighboring property owner. The 
comment from the property owner at 140 7th Ave opposes the application, and is included as 
Attachment E to the Staff Report. 
 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION:  
 
A stable solution requires consideration of this application by the City Council after providing an 
opportunity for the applicant and any member of the public to provide testimony at a public 
hearing. The City Council should consider the precedent that is set by this decision.  
 
OPTIONS: The City Council will need to hold a public hearing in order to hear testimony related 
to this application. After the public hearing has been concluded, the options before the City 
Council include the following: 

1. Move to approve application VR18-07 and thereby approve the variance proposed at 
203 5th Avenue; and direct staff to memorialize the decision in an Order that will be 
presented to the City Council on the Consent Agenda during the January 22, 2019 City 
Council Meeting. 

2. Move to deny VR18-07 and thereby deny the request for the variance proposed at 203 
5th Avenue; and direct staff to memorialize the decision in an Order that will be 
presented to the City Council on the Consent Agenda during the January 22, 2019 City 
Council Meeting. 

3. Move to continue the public hearing to a date and time certain (specify); or 
4. Do Nothing. 
5. Other.     

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Based on the information submitted into the record as of the writing of this RCA, I recommend 
that the City Council follow Option 2 and deny the application. It is my opinion that there is not 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 8



adequate information in the record to demonstrate compliance with all of the criteria for the 
variance request. The reasons for this recommendation are discussed in the Staff Report 
(attached). In particular, the applicant has not adequately shown that: 
 

“The request is the minimum variance necessary to make reasonable use of the 
property” [SHMC 17.88.040(C)]; 
 
Or that: “The property has a physical circumstance or condition that makes it difficult to 
develop” [SHMC 17.88.040(H)]. 

 
If prior to, or at the public hearing, evidence is presented that the City Council finds to 
adequately address all of the criteria for approval of a variance, then my recommendation is that 
the application be approved as outlined in Option 1. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 9



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR18-07 Appeal  1 

 

 

 

 

 
Staff Report Presented to the City Council 

REQUEST: The applicant is requesting a variance in order to build a 1,728 square foot shop 
building. In the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone the maximum floor area for an accessory 
structure is 864 square feet. [SHMC 17.08.030(D)].  

The subject property is located in the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone.   

APPELLANT: Ray Towry, City Manager 

APPLICANT: James Pickett 

PROPERTY OWNER: James Pickett 

FILE NUMBER(S):  VR18-07 

PROPERTIES: 203 5th Avenue, Sweet Home, OR 97386; Identified on the Linn 
County Assessor’s Map as 13S01E31CD Tax Lot 700.  

REVIEW AND  
DECISION CRITERIA:  Sweet Home Municipal Code (SHMC) Sections 17.88.040, 

17.88.050, 17.08.030(D) 
 

HEARING DATE &TIME: January 8, 2019 at 6:30 PM 

HEARING LOCATION: Sweet Home Police Department, Council Chambers at 1950 
Main Street, Sweet Home, Oregon 

STAFF CONTACT: Angela Clegg. Phone: (541) 367-8113; Email: 
vgo.rthomeoeesw@gegacl  

REPORT DATE: December 31, 2018 

 

I. BACKGROUND 

The Planning Commission provided an opportunity for public testimony at a public hearing on 
November 5, 2018 for Variance Application VR18-07.  At that hearing the Planning Commission 
heard testimony from staff and from the applicant.  Once the hearing was closed the Planning 
Commission deliberated and then voted 3 to 2 to approve the variance.  The Notice of Decision 
was mailed on November 19, 2018.  The Appeal period for the decision was 12 days from the 
date the decision was mailed, ending on December 1, 2018.  The City Manager, Ray Towry, 
filed the appeal for application VR18-07 on November 30, 2018. 

The appeal is being filed under SHMC 17.12.050: “The City Manager shall have the power and 
duty to enforce the provisions of this title.” The City Manager cited that the decision on VR18-07 
did not include adequate findings to demonstrate compliance with all of the decision criteria for 
the application.  The City Manager found that It has not been shown that: 

  

City of Sweet Home 
1140 12

th
 Avenue 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 
541-367-8113 

Fax 541-367-5113 
www.ci.sweet-home.or.us 

 

Community and Economic Development Department 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 10



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR18-07 Appeal  2 

 

“The request is the minimum variance necessary to make reasonable use of the property” 
[SHMC 17.88.040(C)]; 

Or that: “The property has a physical circumstance or condition that makes it difficult to develop” 
[SHMC 17.88.040(H)]. 

II. PROJECT AND PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

The applicant is requesting a variance in order to build a 1,728 square foot personal shop. In the 
Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone the maximum floor area for an accessory structure is 864 
square feet.  

SHMC 17.08.030(D) requires:  An accessory structure shall be detached from all other buildings 
by at least six feet. Accessory structures shall have a maximum floor area of 864 square feet. 

 

ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATIONS: 

Property Zoning Designation Comprehensive Plan Designation 

Subject Property Residential Low-Density (R-1) Low Density Residential 

Property North Residential Low-Density (R-1) Public 

Property East Residential Low-Density (R-1) Medium Density Residential 

Property South Residential Low-Density (R-1) Medium Density Residential 

Property West Residential Low-Density (R-1) Medium Density Residential 

 

Floodplain Based on a review of the FEMA FIRM Maps; Panel 41043C0913G dated 
September 29, 2010, the subject property is not located in the 100-year 
floodplain.  

Wetlands: The subject property does not contain wetlands that are inventoried on the 
Sweet Home Local Wetlands Inventory or the National Wetlands Inventory 
(NWI) Map. 

Access: The subject property has frontage along 5th Avenue.  

Services: The subject property has access to city water and sewer. 

Street: 5th Avenue is a local street and has a 50 foot right-of-way.   

 

TIMELINES AND HEARING NOTICE:  

Application Received:     October 3, 2018 

Application Deemed Complete:   October 8, 2018 

Notice Distributed to Neighboring Property  
Owners Within 100 feet and Service Agencies: October 16, 2018 

Notice Published in New Era Newspaper:  October 22, 2018 

Date of Planning Commission Hearing:  November 5, 2018 

Date of Appeal:     November 30, 2018 

Appeal Notice Distributed to Neighboring Property  

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 11



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR18-07 Appeal  3 

 

Owners Within 100 feet and Service Agencies: December 17, 2018 

Notice Published in New Era Newspaper:  December 26, 2018  

Date of City Council Hearing:    January 8, 2019 

120-Day Processing Deadline:   January 31, 2019 

 

III. COMMENTS (submitted to Planning Commission for November 5, 2018 Meeting) 

Engineering Division: Project & Location: 
 Request VR 18-07 is for a Variance to build a 1,728 SqFt shop
 building at 203 5th Avenue, 13S01E31CD-700.  Construction will  

be 15ft from the east, and 5ft from the north property lines.  The 
property has a paved driveway access to the public frontage to 5th 
Ave to the west, which has 12ft of AC pavement, shallow grass 
swale drainage, and a 50ft wide right-of-way.   
Streets & Stormwater: 
The property naturally grades and slopes to the north, with all 
drainage running appearing to run onto the adjacent school 
property, or the properties on 7th Ave.  A drainage swale system 
on the school property used to run northerly along the property 
lines of the adjacent properties, and may still be there.   
Water & Sanitary: 
The property is served by sewer with the main line in the back 
yards under the common line between the school grounds and the 
backyards off 7th Ave.   The city has an easement on the west 
property line by public utility placement, with a width generally 12ft 
centered on the property line so that 6 ft would be on either 
side.  The proposed structure would not encroach into the 
easement.   The water service is from 7th Ave, with the line 
running between two driveways of adjacent properties.   
Comments & Recommendations: 
Engineering Division would recommend that drainage runoff be 
contained on site without flowing directly downslope to the east 
neighbors or the school grounds.   The school may allow drainage 
from the perimeter properties to flow into the existing swale. 
-Joseph Graybill, PE, City of Sweet Home 

 

Building Division: The Building Program has no issues with this variance request. 
 
OR Dept. State Lands It is unlikely there are wetlands in that corner of the tax lot where the 

shop is proposed to be built. 
 -Lauren Brown, Wetland Ecologist 
 
Public Comments: See Attachment E 
 

IV. REVIEW AND DECISION CRITERIA  

The review and decision criteria for a variance are listed below in bold. Findings and analysis 
are provided under each review and decision criterion.  

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 12



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR18-07 Appeal  4 

 

A. A determination that the criteria have been met involves the balancing of competing 
and conflicting interests. The following considerations may be used as guidelines in 
the granting authority's deliberations. [SHMC 17.88.050(A-E)] 

a. Whether the situation that created a need for a variance was created by the 
person requesting the variance; 

b. The economic impact upon the person requesting the variance if the request 
is denied; 

c. An analysis of the physical impacts the development could have, such as 
visual, noise, traffic, and increased potential for drainage, erosion or 
landslide hazards; 

d. Preservation of native tree species such as Oregon White Oak and Pacific 
Madrone over eight inches in caliper or Douglas Fir, Willamette Valley 
Ponderosa Pine, Big Leaf Maple, Incense and Western Red Cedar over 12 
inches in caliper, measured at four and one-half feet above grade on the 
uphill side; 

e. Whether the proposal impacts the aesthetics of the property.  

Staff Findings: The criteria for a variance are listed in Subsection B below. The above section of 
the SHMC provides a list of considerations that may be used when evaluating each of the 
criteria. 

B. The criteria that shall be used in approving, approving with conditions, or denying a 
requested variance will be based on findings with respect to compliance with each 
of the following criteria, if applicable. 

a. The development resulting from an approved variance will not be detrimental 
to public health or safety; [SHMC 17.88.040(A)] 

Applicant’s Comments: The property behind the subject property is an old railroad trail. The 
property to the north of the subject property is Oak Heights grade school. There are no 
neighbors to the east of the property that borders 7th Avenue.  With the size of the property 
(approximately 67,154 Square feet), the applicant does not believe that it will have a negative 
effect on property values. 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any reasons why the applicant’s proposed shop would be 
detrimental to public health or safety.  Use would be those permitted in the R-1 zone. The 
Comprehensive Plan lists the subject property as Low-Density Residential. The maximum floor 
area for an accessory structure is 864 square feet [17.08.030(D)]. 

b. The request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan; [SHMC 
17.88.040(B)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any goals or policies of the Comprehensive Plan that 
would preclude the proposed variance. 

c. The request is the minimum variance necessary to make reasonable use of 
the property; [SHMC 17.88.040(C)] 

Applicants Comments: The applicant stated, at the Planning Commission hearing, that due to 
the lot size of 1.55 acres, he prefers to build a 1,728 square foot shop. The applicant is open to 
other options; a 1,200 square foot shop, or an 864 square foot shop with a lean to for RV 
storage. 

Staff Findings: The applicant stated in the November 5, 2018 Planning Commission meeting 
that he would be willing to reduce the size of his shop to closer meet code. [SHMC 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 13



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR18-07 Appeal  5 

 

17.08.030(D)]. For this reason, a request to build the proposed 1,728 square foot shop does not 
appear to be the minimum variance necessary to make reasonable use of the property. 

d. The requested variance is consistent with the purposes of the zone; [SHMC 
17.88.040(D)] 

i. The purpose of the R-1 zone is to provide areas suitable and desirable 
for single-family homes, associated public service uses and duplexes 
on corner lots. The R-1 zone is most appropriate in areas which have 
developed or will develop with single-family homes at a density which 
warrants provision of public water and sewer facilities. [SHMC 
17.24.010] 

Staff Findings: Staff finds that a shop is consistent with the purposes of the R-1 zone. The shop 
building would be accessory to the existing single family dwelling located on the subject 
property.  A shop meets the purpose of the R-1 zone, however the proposed shop is larger than 
the maximum square footage for an accessory structure of 864 square feet. [SHMC 
17.08.030(D)]. The question before the City Council is whether a larger shop building is 
consistent with the purpose of the R-1 zone considering that multiple 864 square foot buildings 
could be established on the property. 

e. If more than one variance is requested or needed, the cumulative effect of the 
variances will result in a project that remains consistent with the purposes of 
the zone; [SHMC 17.88.040(E)] 

Staff Findings: The applicant is not requesting more than one variance. 

The application complies with this criterion. 

f. Identified negative impacts resulting from the variance can be mitigated to 
the extent practical; [SHMC 17.88.040(F)] 

Applicant’s Comments: The applicant stated, at the Planning Commission hearing, that there is 
a culvert in his front yard where the gutters from his home drain. There is the possibility the 
shop runoff could utilize this for drainage. The applicant also states that his water and sewer are 
accessed from 7th Avenue not 5th Avenue. [Planning Commission meeting minutes, dated 
November 5, 2018]. 

Staff Findings: The Engineering Division recommends that drainage runoff be contained on site 
without flowing directly downslope to the east neighbors or the school grounds.   The school 
may allow drainage from the perimeter properties to flow into the existing swale.  Staff 
recommends this condition in order to ensure that drainage runoff does not affect the school or 
neighboring properties. 

g. The location, size, design characteristics and other features of the proposal 
shall have minimal adverse impacts on property values, livability of the 
permitted development in the surrounding area, and the natural environment; 
[SHMC 17.88.040(G)] 

Applicant’s Comments: With the size of his property the applicant does not feel that building a 
larger shop would be detrimental to any of the neighbors or the city.  The applicant does not 
believe that it will have a negative effect on property values. 

Staff Findings: Staff received one comment contending that they don’t want a large shop built 
behind their home, and they feel that a large shop would devalue and diminish their privacy 
further. [Attachment E]. 

 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 14



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR18-07 Appeal  6 

 

h. The property has a physical circumstance or condition that makes it difficult 
to develop. The request complies with the requirements of the underlying 
zone or overlay zone, city codes, state and federal laws. [SHMC 17.88.040(H)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any physical circumstances or condition that would make 
an 864 square foot accessory structure difficult to develop. There is not adequate information in 
the record to demonstrate compliance with this condition. 

C. A variance shall be void one year, or other time specifically set by the Planning 
Commission after the date of the Planning Commission approval if the development 
has not been substantially established within that time period. [SHMC 17.88.060] 

Staff Findings: As required under this section, if this application is approved, the variance shall 
be void one (1) year after the date of the City Council approval if the use has not been 
substantially established, as defined under SHMC 17.88.060, within that time period.  

 
V. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the above findings, there is not adequate information in the record to demonstrate 
compliance with all of the criteria for the variance request. Therefore staff recommends that this 
application be denied.  

 

VI. CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

The City Council will hold a public hearing at which it may either approve or deny this 
application.  The action must be based on the applicable review and decision criteria.  

Order: After the City Council makes a decision, staff recommends that the City Council direct 
staff to prepare an order. The Order would memorialize the decision and be placed on the 
Consent Agenda for review. 

Motion: 

After opening the public hearing and receiving testimony, the City Council’s options include the 
following: 

1. Move to approve the application VR18-07 and thereby approve the variance proposed at 
203 5th Avenue; and direct staff to memorialize the decision in an Order that will be 
presented to the City Council on the Consent Agenda during the January 22, 2019 City 
Council Meeting. 

2. Move to deny VR18-07 and thereby deny the request for the variance proposed at 203 
5th Avenue; and direct staff to memorialize the decision in an Order that will be 
presented to the City Council on the Consent Agenda during the January 22, 2019 City 
Council Meeting. 

 
3. Move to continue the public hearing to a date and time certain (specify); or 

4. Other. 

  

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 15



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR18-07 Appeal  7 

 

VII. ATTACHMENTS 

 

A -  Proposed Variance Plot Plan for 203 5th Avenue 

B -  Aerial Property Map of 203 5th Avenue  

C -  Application 

D -  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes dated November 5, 2018 

E -  Public Comments 

F -  Planning Commission Order of Approval 

G -  Planning Commission Staff Report 

 

The full record is available for review at the City of Sweet Home Community and Economic 
Development Department Office located at City Hall, 1140 12th Ave, Sweet Home, Oregon 
97386. Regular business hours are between 7:00 AM and 4:00 PM, Monday through Friday; 
excluding holidays. 

 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 16



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 17



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 18



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 19



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 20



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 21



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 22



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 23



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 24



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 25



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 26



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 27



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 28



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 29



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 30



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 31



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 32



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 33



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 34



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 35



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 36



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 37



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 38



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 39

jsorte
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT D



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 40



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 41



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 42



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 43



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 44



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 45



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 46



Notice of a Planning Commission Decision on a Land Use Application 1  
Order of Conditional Approval 

 
OFFICIAL NOTICE OF A PLANNING COMMISSION DECISION 

ON A LAND USE APPLICATION 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION ORDER OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

I. REQUEST SUMMARY: The applicant is requesting a variance in order to build a 1,728 
square foot shop building. In the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone the maximum floor 
area for an accessory structure is 864 square feet. [SHMC 17.08.030(D)].  

The subject property is located in the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone.     

APPLICANT: James Pickett 

PROPERTY OWNER: James Pickett 

FILE NUMBER(S):  VR 18-07 

PROPERTIES: 203 5th Avenue, Sweet Home, OR 97386; Identified on the Linn 
County Assessor’s Map as 13S01E31CD Tax Lot 700. 

REVIEW AND  
DECISION CRITERIA:  Sweet Home Municipal Code (SHMC) Sections 17.88.040, 

17.88.050, 17.08.030(D) 

STAFF CONTACT: Angela Clegg. Phone: (541) 367-8113; Email: 
aclegg@sweethomeor.gov 

II. PUBLIC HEARING: The Sweet Home Planning Commission held a public hearing on 
November 5, 2018.  At the hearing the Planning Commission reviewed application VR 18-
07. The Planning Commission received testimony and deliberated on this matter at their 
November 5, 2018 meeting, and passed a motion to approve the application. That motion of 
approval specified a 12-day appeal period. Specific conditions of approval were required, 
and are listed in Section IV of this Order. 

III. FINDINGS OF FACT: The Planning Commission provided an opportunity for testimony at 
the November 5, 2018 public hearing. The Planning Commission considered the information 
in the record, testimony at the public hearing, and the Findings of Fact listed in the Staff 
Report presented to the Planning Commission prior to the November 5, 2018 public hearing. 
The Planning Commission adopted the Findings of Fact listed in Section III of the Staff 
Report dated October 29, 2018, and those are included as Exhibit A to this Order. At their 
meeting, the Planning Commission discussed the minimum size requirements for an 
accessory structure [SHMC 17.88.040].  The applicant stated that he was willing to reduce 
the size of his proposed accessory structure if the commissioners requested it. The Planning 
Commission passed the Variance as proposed in the application by a 3-2 vote in favor of the 
Variance.  The required condition is included in Section IV.

City of Sweet Home 
1140 12

th
 Avenue 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 
541-367-8113 

Fax 541-367-5113 
www.ci.sweet-home.or.us 

 

Community and Economic Development Department 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 47

jsorte
Typewriter
Attachment F



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 48



Notice of a Planning Commission Decision on a Land Use Application 2  
Order of Conditional Approval 

Exhibit A to Order of Conditional Approval for VR 18-07 

 
Findings of Fact Presented in Sections III of the Staff Report presented to the Planning 
Commission for VR 18-07. The review and decision criteria for a variance are listed below in 
bold. Findings and analysis are provided under each review and decision criterion.  
 
A. A determination that the criteria have been met involves the balancing of competing 

and conflicting interests. The following considerations may be used as guidelines in 
the granting authority's deliberations. 

a. Whether the situation that created a need for a variance was created by the 
person requesting the variance; 

b. The economic impact upon the person requesting the variance if the request 
is denied; 

c. An analysis of the physical impacts the development could have, such as 
visual, noise, traffic, and increased potential for drainage, erosion or 
landslide hazards; 

d. Preservation of native tree species such as Oregon White Oak and Pacific 
Madrone over eight inches in caliper or Douglas Fir, Willamette Valley 
Ponderosa Pine, Big Leaf Maple, Incense and Western Red Cedar over 12 
inches in caliper, measured at four and one-half feet above grade on the 
uphill side; 

e. Whether the proposal impacts the aesthetics of the property. [SHMC 
17.88.050(A through E)] 

Staff Findings: The criteria for a variance are listed in Subsection B below. The above section of 
the SHMC provides a list of considerations that may be used when evaluating each of the 
criteria. 

B. The criteria that shall be used in approving, approving with conditions, or denying a 
requested variance will be based on findings with respect to compliance with each 
of the following criteria, if applicable. 

a. The development resulting from an approved variance will not be detrimental 
to public health or safety; [SHMC 17.88.040(A)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any reasons why the applicant’s proposed shop would be 
detrimental to public health or safety.  Use would be those permitted in the R-1 zone. The 
application complies with this criterion. 

a. The development resulting from an approved variance will not be detrimental 
to public health or safety; [SHMC 17.88.040(A)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any reasons why the applicant’s proposed shop would be 
detrimental to public health or safety.  Use would be those permitted in the R-1 zone. The 
application complies with this criterion. 

b. The request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan; [SHMC 
17.88.040(B)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any goals or policies of the Comprehensive Plan that 
would preclude the proposed variance. 

c. The request is the minimum variance necessary to make reasonable use of 
the property; [SHMC 17.88.040(C)] 

Staff Findings: As depicted on the applicant’s plot plans, the proposed shop is within setbacks 
and complies with the lot coverage of the R-1 zone. Regardless of the side and rear yard 
requirements of the zone, an accessory structure, excluding detached accessory dwellings, may 
be built to within five feet of side or rear lot line; provided, the structure is more than 70 feet from 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 49



Notice of a Planning Commission Decision on a Land Use Application 3  
Order of Conditional Approval 

the street abutting the front yard and 20 feet from the street abutting the street side yard. 
[SHMC 17.24.050(F)]. The proposed shop would be located 15 feet from the rear property line 
and 5 feet from the side property line. The application complies with this criterion. 

d. The requested variance is consistent with the purposes of the zone; [SHMC 
17.88.040(D)] 

i. The purpose of the R-3 zone is to provide areas suitable and desirable 
for single-family homes, duplexes on corner lots, condominiums, town 
houses and appropriate community facilities. [SHMC 17.30.010] 

Staff Findings: Staff finds that the proposed shop is consistent with the purposes of the R-1 
zone. The shop building would be an accessory to the existing single family dwelling located on 
the subject property. The application complies with this criterion. 

e. If more than one variance is requested or needed, the cumulative effect of the 
variances will result in a project that remains consistent with the purposes of 
the zone; [SHMC 17.88.040(E)] 

Staff Findings: The applicant is not requesting more than one variance. The application 
complies with this criterion. 

f. Identified negative impacts resulting from the variance can be mitigated to 
the extent practical; [SHMC 17.88.040(F)] 

Staff Findings: The Engineering Division recommends that drainage runoff be contained on site 
without flowing directly downslope to the east neighbors or the school grounds.   The school 
may allow drainage from the perimeter properties to flow into the existing swale.  Staff 
recommends this condition in order to ensure that drainage runoff does not affect the school or 
neighboring properties. The application complies with this criterion. 

g. The location, size, design characteristics and other features of the proposal 
shall have minimal adverse impacts on property values, livability of the 
permitted development in the surrounding area, and the natural environment; 
[SHMC 17.88.040(G)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any significant adverse impacts on property values, 
neighborhood livability, and the natural environment that would result from construction of the 
proposed shop. The application complies with this criterion. 

h. The property has a physical circumstance or condition that makes it difficult 
to develop. The request complies with the requirements of the underlying 
zone or overlay zone, city codes, state and federal laws. [SHMC 17.88.040(H)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any physical circumstances or condition that would make 
the proposed shop difficult to develop. The application complies with this criterion. 

C. A variance shall be void one year, or other time specifically set by the Planning 
Commission, after the date of the Planning Commission approval if the 
development has not been substantially established within that time period. [SHMC 
17.88.060] 

Staff Findings: As required under this section, if this application is approved, the variance shall 
be void one (1) year after the date of the Planning Commission approval if the use has not been 
substantially established, as defined under SHMC 17.88.060, within that time period. 

 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 50



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 51



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR 18-07  1 
 

 

 

 

 
Staff Report Presented to the Planning Commission 

REQUEST: The applicant is requesting a variance in order to build a 1,728 square foot shop 
building. In the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone the maximum floor area for an accessory 
structure is 864 square feet. [SHMC 17.08.030(D)].  
The subject property is located in the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone.   
APPLICANT: James Pickett 
PROPERTY OWNER: James Pickett 
FILE NUMBER(S):  VR 18-07 
PROPERTIES: 203 5th Avenue, Sweet Home, OR 97386; Identified on the Linn 

County Assessor’s Map as 13S01E31CD Tax Lot 700.  
REVIEW AND  

DECISION CRITERIA:  Sweet Home Municipal Code (SHMC) Sections 17.88.040, 
17.88.050, 17.08.030(D) 

HEARING DATE &TIME: November 5, 2018 at 7:00 PM 
HEARING LOCATION: City Hall Annex, Council Chambers behind City Hall at 1140 12th 

Avenue, Sweet Home, Oregon 
STAFF CONTACT: Angela Clegg. Phone: (541) 367-8113; Email: 

aclegg@sweethomeor.gov 
REPORT DATE: October 29, 2018 

 

I. PROJECT AND PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

The applicant is requesting a variance in order to build a 1,728 square foot personal shop. In the 
Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone the maximum floor area for an accessory structure is 864 
square feet.  
SHMC 17.08.030(D) requires:  An accessory structure shall be detached from all other buildings 
by at least six feet. Accessory structures shall have a maximum floor area of 864 square feet. 
 
ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATIONS: 
Property Zoning Designation Comprehensive Plan Designation 

Subject Property Residential Low-Density (R-1) Low Density Residential 
Property North Residential Low-Density (R-1) Public 
Property East Residential Low-Density (R-1) Medium Density Residential 

City of Sweet Home 
1140 12th Avenue 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 
541-367-8113 

Fax 541-367-5113 
www.ci.sweet-home.or.us 

 

Community and Economic Development Department 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 52

jsorte
Typewriter
Attachment G



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR 18-07  2 
 

Property South Residential Low-Density (R-1) Medium Density Residential 
Property West Residential Low-Density (R-1) Medium Density Residential 

 
Floodplain Based on a review of the FEMA FIRM Maps; Panel 41043C0913G dated 

September 29, 2010, the subject property is not located in the 100-year 
floodplain.  

Wetlands: The subject property does not contain wetlands that are inventoried on the 
Sweet Home Local Wetlands Inventory or the National Wetlands Inventory 
(NWI) Map. 

Access: The subject property has frontage along 5th Avenue.  
Services: The subject property has access to city water and sewer. 
Street: 5th Avenue is a local street and has a 50 foot right-of-way.   
 
TIMELINES AND HEARING NOTICE:  
Application Received:     October 3, 2018 
Application Deemed Complete:   October 8, 2018 
Notice Distributed to Neighboring Property  
Owners Within 100 feet and Service Agencies: October 16, 2018 
Notice Published in New Era Newspaper:  October 22, 2018 
Date of Planning Commission Hearing:  November 5, 2018 
120-Day Processing Deadline:   January 31, 2019 
 
 

II. COMMENTS 

Engineering Division: Project & Location: 
 Request VR 18-07 is for a Variance to build a 1,728 SqFt shop
 building at 203 5th Avenue, 13S01E31CD-700.  Construction will  

be 15ft from the east, and 5ft from the north property lines.  The 
property has a paved driveway access to the public frontage to 5th 
Ave to the west, which has 12ft of AC pavement, shallow grass 
swale drainage, and a 50ft wide right-of-way.   
 
Streets & Stormwater: 
The property naturally grades and slopes to the north, with all 
drainage running appearing to run onto the adjacent school 
property, or the properties on 7th Ave.  A drainage swale system 
on the school property used to run northerly along the property 
lines of the adjacent properties, and may still be there.   
 
Water & Sanitary: 
The property is served by sewer with the main line in the back 
yards under the common line between the school grounds and the 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 53



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR 18-07  3 
 

backyards off 7th Ave.   The city has an easement on the west 
property line by public utility placement, with a width generally 12ft 
centered on the property line so that 6 ft would be on either 
side.  The proposed structure would not encroach into the 
easement.   The water service is from 7th Ave , with the line 
running between two driveways of adjacent properties.   

 
Comments & Recommendations: 
Engineering Division would recommend that drainage runoff be 
contained on site without flowing directly downslope to the east 
neighbors or the school grounds.   The school may allow drainage 
from the perimeter properties to flow into the existing swale. 
-Joseph Graybill, PE, City of Sweet Home 

 

Building Division: The Building Program has no issues with this variance request. 
 
OR Dept. State Lands It is unlikely there are wetlands in that corner of the tax lot where the 

shop is proposed to be built. 
 -Lauren Brown, Wetland Ecologist 
 
 

III. REVIEW AND DECISION CRITERIA  

The review and decision criteria for a variance are listed below in bold. Findings and analysis 
are provided under each review and decision criterion.  
A. A determination that the criteria have been met involves the balancing of competing 

and conflicting interests. The following considerations may be used as guidelines in 
the granting authority's deliberations. [SHMC 17.88.050(A-E)] 

a. Whether the situation that created a need for a variance was created by the 
person requesting the variance; 

b. The economic impact upon the person requesting the variance if the request 
is denied; 

c. An analysis of the physical impacts the development could have, such as 
visual, noise, traffic, and increased potential for drainage, erosion or 
landslide hazards; 

d. Preservation of native tree species such as Oregon White Oak and Pacific 
Madrone over eight inches in caliper or Douglas Fir, Willamette Valley 
Ponderosa Pine, Big Leaf Maple, Incense and Western Red Cedar over 12 
inches in caliper, measured at four and one-half feet above grade on the 
uphill side; 

e. Whether the proposal impacts the aesthetics of the property.  

Staff Findings: The criteria for a variance are listed in Subsection B below. The above section of 
the SHMC provides a list of considerations that may be used when evaluating each of the 
criteria. 
B. The criteria that shall be used in approving, approving with conditions, or denying a 

requested variance will be based on findings with respect to compliance with each 
of the following criteria, if applicable. 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 54



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR 18-07  4 
 

a. The development resulting from an approved variance will not be detrimental 
to public health or safety; [SHMC 17.88.040(A)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any reasons why the applicant’s proposed shop would be 
detrimental to public health or safety.  Use would be those permitted in the R-1 zone. 
The application complies with this criterion. 

b. The request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan; [SHMC 
17.88.040(B)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any goals or policies of the Comprehensive Plan that 
would preclude the proposed variance. 

c. The request is the minimum variance necessary to make reasonable use of 
the property; [SHMC 17.88.040(C)] 

Staff Findings: As depicted on the applicant’s plot plans, the proposed shop is within setbacks 
and complies with the lot coverage of the R-1 zone. Regardless of the side and rear yard 
requirements of the zone, an accessory structure, excluding detached accessory dwellings, may 
be built to within five feet of side or rear lot line; provided, the structure is more than 70 feet from 
the street abutting the front yard and 20 feet from the street abutting the street side yard. 
[SHMC 17.24.050(F)]. The proposed shop would be located 15 feet from the rear property line 
and 5 feet from the side property line.  
The application complies with this criterion. 

d. The requested variance is consistent with the purposes of the zone; [SHMC 
17.88.040(D)] 

i. The purpose of the R-1 zone is to provide areas suitable and desirable 
for single-family homes, associated public service uses and duplexes 
on corner lots. The R-1 zone is most appropriate in areas which have 
developed or will develop with single-family homes at a density which 
warrants provision of public water and sewer facilities. [SHMC 
17.24.010] 

Staff Findings: Staff finds that the proposed shop is consistent with the purposes of the R-1 
zone. The shop building would be an accessory to the existing single family dwelling located on 
the subject property. 
The application complies with this criterion. 

e. If more than one variance is requested or needed, the cumulative effect of the 
variances will result in a project that remains consistent with the purposes of 
the zone; [SHMC 17.88.040(E)] 

Staff Findings: The applicant is not requesting more than one variance. 
The application complies with this criterion. 

f. Identified negative impacts resulting from the variance can be mitigated to 
the extent practical; [SHMC 17.88.040(F)] 

Staff Findings: The Engineering Division recommends that drainage runoff be contained on site 
without flowing directly downslope to the east neighbors or the school grounds.   The school 
may allow drainage from the perimeter properties to flow into the existing swale.  Staff 
recommends this condition in order to ensure that drainage runoff does not affect the school or 
neighboring properties. 
The application complies with this criterion. 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 55



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR 18-07  5 
 

g. The location, size, design characteristics and other features of the proposal 
shall have minimal adverse impacts on property values, livability of the 
permitted development in the surrounding area, and the natural environment; 
[SHMC 17.88.040(G)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any significant adverse impacts on property values, 
neighborhood livability, and the natural environment that would result from construction of the 
proposed shop. 
The application complies with this criterion. 

h. The property has a physical circumstance or condition that makes it difficult 
to develop. The request complies with the requirements of the underlying 
zone or overlay zone, city codes, state and federal laws. [SHMC 17.88.040(H)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any physical circumstances or condition that would make 
the proposed shop difficult to develop. 
The application complies with this criterion. 
C. A variance shall be void one year, or other time specifically set by the Planning 

Commission, after the date of the Planning Commission approval if the 
development has not been substantially established within that time period. [SHMC 
17.88.060] 

Staff Findings: As required under this section, if this application is approved, the variance shall 
be void one (1) year after the date of the Planning Commission approval if the use has not been 
substantially established, as defined under SHMC 17.88.060, within that time period.  
 

 
IV. PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 

The Planning Commission will hold a public hearing at which it may either approve or deny the 
application(s).  If the application is denied, the action must be based on the applicable review 
and decision criteria.  
Appeal Period: Staff recommends that the Planning Commission’s decision on this matter be 
subject to a 12-day appeal period from the date that the notice of decision is mailed.  
Order: After the Planning Commission makes a decision, staff recommends that the Planning 
Commission direct staff to prepare an order that is signed by the Chairperson of the Planning 
Commission. The Order would memorialize the decision and provide the official list of conditions 
(if any) that apply to the approval; if the application is approved. 
Conditions of Approval: If approved, the Planning Commission may impose conditions of 
approval. As discussed in Section III above, staff recommends the following condition: 

1. Drainage runoff be contained on site without flowing directly downslope to the east 
neighbors or the school grounds.   

Motion: 

After opening the public hearing and receiving testimony, the Planning Commission’s options 
include the following: 

1. Move to approve application VR 18-07 and thereby permit the variance proposed at 203 
5th Avenue; adopting the findings of fact listed in Section III of the staff report condition of 
approval, the setting of a 12-day appeal period from the date of the mailing of the 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 56



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR 18-07  6 
 

decision, and hereby direct staff to prepare an order to be signed by the Chair to 
memorialize this decision. 

2. Move to deny application VR 18-07 and thereby deny the request for variances  
proposed at 203 5th Avenue; adopting the following findings (specify), the setting of a 12-
day appeal period from the date of the mailing of the decision, and hereby direct staff to 
prepare an order to be signed by the Chair to memorialize this decision. 
 

3. Move to continue the public hearing to a date and time certain (specify); or 
4. Other. 

 

 

 

VII. ATTACHMENTS 

 

A -  Proposed Variance Plot Plan for 203 5th Avenue 
B -  Aerial Property Map of 203 5th Avenue  
C -  Application 

 
The full record is available for review at the City of Sweet Home Community and Economic 
Development Department Office located at City Hall, 1140 12th Ave, Sweet Home, Oregon 
97386. Regular business hours are between 7:00 AM and 4:00 PM, Monday through Friday; 
excluding holidays. 
 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 57



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 58



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 59



 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 
 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
January 22, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Brandon Neish, Finance Director 
REVIEWED BY:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
Supplemental Budget for New Police 
Vehicle 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Resolution No. 3 for 2019 
Public Hearing Notice 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
  X   RESOLUTION 
    _ MOTION 
    _ OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA: 
To review a supplemental budget for the Narcotics fund due to an unanticipated need for an 
additional police vehicle. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT: 
The Sweet Home Police Department maintains a fleet of marked patrol vehicles as well as 
unmarked vehicles used by the Community Services Officer and the Detective. Many of the 
Patrol vehicles are aging and the fleet replacements were put off in prior fiscal years due to a 
lack of long-term funding. There are eight Patrol vehicles, three of which are “new” while the 
other five were purchased between 2010 and 2013. These vehicles exceed 96k miles. The 
other vehicles, all unmarked, are in similar condition and have been in service for many years. 
 
The current Detective’s vehicle, an unmarked Chevy van with 91k miles, is experiencing major 
mechanical issues including a heating/air conditioning problem that would cost $900 to repair 
and a blown head gasket. With an estimated value of $3,000 or less at a Kelly Blue Book “fair” 
value, the repairs necessary far outweigh the value of the vehicle. As a result, and with the other 
unmarked vehicles either well known around town or surplused, the Police Department is in 
need of a Detective’s vehicle.  Based on the condition of the current Detective vehicle and the 
lack of functional vehicles to replace it, it is clear an alternate solution must be sought.  
 
Due to the emergent need of a Detective’s vehicle, various options have been evaluated to do 
the most good over the longest period. The primary funding source for the Police Department is 
a five-year operating levy funded by property taxes. Due to the temporary status of this funding 
source and the need to use its funds to operate the Police Department, the Narcotics fund was 
identified as the best funding source to purchase this replacement vehicle and provide the most 
benefit to taxpayers and the department. The Narcotics fund consists of funds deposited from 
seizures and surplused equipment.   
 
However, since the department cannot operate without a Detective’s vehicle, existing 
expenditure authority in Fund 200 (Police Operating) is available if deemed more suitable.   
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
How to best replace the Detective’s vehicle that repairs would cost more than the vehicle’s 
value? 
 
STAKEHOLDERS: 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 60



• City of Sweet Home citizens – The Detective investigates person and property crimes in 
addition to narcotics crimes. These investigations are vital to the livability in the 
community. 

• City of Sweet Home City Council – The Council adopts the final budget for a fiscal year 
and approves any supplemental budget requests when necessary expenditures exceed 
expenditure authority. 

• City of Sweet Home Police Department – The Police Department relies on working 
equipment in order to serve and protect the community with “honor and integrity.” 
  

ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
While the current vehicle being sought is less than half the price of a new patrol vehicle, the 
funding source proposed was not part of the adopted 2018-2019 budget due to the 
unanticipated need for a replacement vehicle. A supplemental budget and public hearing are 
required prior to adoption of a resolution authorizing expenditure authority from the Narcotic 
fund. 
  
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
Decision from Council regarding the use of the Narcotics fund for the vehicle purchase. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing.  Council could choose to do nothing at this time. Existing expenditure 
authority would be used to purchase the vehicle.   

2. Approve Resolution No. 3 for 2019. This supplemental budget authorizes expenditure 
authority from the Narcotics fund for purchase of a Detective’s vehicle. 

3. Request staff return with a different authorization amount. Council could determine that 
the $15,500 requested from the Narcotics fund exceeds what Council is willing to 
authorize. Staff would return to a future Council meeting with a revised resolution and a 
second Public Hearing as required by ORS. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends option 2, Adopt Resolution No. 3 for 2019, A Resolution Adopting A 
Supplemental Budget for 2018-2019. There is a critical need for a new Detective’s vehicle to 
replace the current vehicle that is no longer operational. This adjustment represents the best 
fiscal option for the long-term. 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 61



RESOLUTION NO. 3 FOR 2019 

 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

 

WHEREAS, the Sweet Home City Council adopted the 2018-2019 budget on June 26, 2018, and; 

WHEREAS, the Sweet Home Police Department is managing an aging fleet and needs to replace a 
vehicle used by the Police Detective, and; 

WHEREAS, staff requests additional expenditure authority in Fund 204, the Narcotics Fund, which 
includes resources obtained through police seizures and equipment sales, and; 

WHEREAS, Oregon Local Budget Law requires a public hearing for any supplemental budget which adds 
ten (10) percent or more in expenditure authority, and; 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on January 22, 2019 to hear testimony over the proposed 
supplemental budget, and; 

WHEREAS, the Council has heard public testimony on the topic of the supplemental budget. 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF SWEET HOME adopts a supplemental budget 
authorizing $15,500 to be used for the purchase of a replacement vehicle in the Police Department. 

This resolution shall take affect upon its approval and passage. 

 

PASSED by the Council and approved by the Mayor this 22nd day of January 2019 

 

____________________________________________ 

Mayor 

 

____________________________________________ 

         City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 62



REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
PREFERRED AGENDA: 
January 22, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
City Manager Ray Towry 
REVIEWED:   
 

TITLE:  Updates to the City of Sweet 
Home Limited English Proficiency 
Policy and Language Access Plan 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
LEP, Resolution No. 4 for 2019 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
 X    RESOLUTION 
 _   MOTION 
      OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:  Council approval of updates to the City of Sweet Home 
Limited English Proficiency Policy and Language Access Plan 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
Sweet Home is a regular recipient of Federal Transit Administration Funds through the 
Oregon Department of Transportation Rural Transit Program. The RTP funds are used 
as grant match to assist in funding the Sweet Home Dial A Bus Program operated by 
the Sweet Home Senior Citizens Inc. FTA has determined that all agencies that receive 
Federal Transit Funds either directly or indirectly must have an adopted Title VI Plan so 
that no person is excluded from participation in, or denied the benefits of its program 
and services on the basis of race color sex or national origin as protected by Title VI in 
Federal Transit Administration circular 4702.1A. 

The City of Sweet Home adopted the Title VI plan in 2015.  Revisions are necessary to 
bring the plan up-to-date.  Adoption of the revised Title VI plan will bring the City into 
compliance as a sub-recipient of these Federal Transit Administration funds. 

Part of the Title VI plan is the Limited English Proficiency Policy and Language Access 
Plan.  The LEP is to be updated at least every four years.  Updates included current 
statistics, which were provided as “tracked changes” during the January 8, 2019 City 
Council meeting.   

The remainder of the Title VI Plan can be updated following the updates to the LEP. 

 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:    
Should the City Council adopt Resolution No. 4 for 2019, A Resolution to Adopt the 
Revised Limited English Proficiency Policy and Language Access Plan. 

STAKEHOLDERS:   
● City of Sweet Home Residents.  

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
Sweet Home Dial a Bus Program - Compliance with this provision of the FTA/ODOT 
Transit Program is necessary to maintain the City’s eligibility to receive grant funds to 
operate of the Sweet Home Dial Bus Program. 

ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
 
OPTIONS: 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 63



1. Do Nothing.  
2. Adopt Resolution No. 4 for 2019 – A Resolution to Adopt the Revised Limited 

English Proficiency Policy and Language Access Plan 
3. Make additional changes to the LEP 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

1. Option No. 2 - Adopt Resolution No. 4 for 2019 – A Resolution to Adopt the 
Revised Limited English Proficiency Policy and Language Access Plan. 

 
 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 64



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 65



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 66



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 67



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 68



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 69



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 70



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 71



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 72



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 73



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 74



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 75



RESOLUTION NO. 4 FOR 2019 

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE REVISED LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY POLICY 
AND LANGUAGE ACCESS PLAN.  

WHEREAS, the City of Sweet Home undertakes to ensure that persons with Limited 
English Proficiency (LEP) shall not be discriminated against nor denied meaningful 
access to, and participation in, the programs and services provided by the City; and  

WHEREAS, the LEP Plan applies to all City administered programs, services and 
facilities, regardless of whether they receive Federal financial support or not; and  

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City, in providing language services to LEP persons, 
to achieve a balance that ensures meaningful access to programs and services 
while not incurring undue burdens on City resources; and  

WHEREAS, the City Manager’s Office is the central coordinator for the LEP Plan and 
language services, and provides oversight for the implementation of the LEP Plan.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE CITY COUNCIL authorizes the City of 
Sweet Home to adopt and implement the Limited English Proficiency Policy and 
Language Access Plan for the City.  

This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this 22nd day of January, 
2019. 

     Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Manager - Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 76



City of Sweet Home 

Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Plan 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

Greg Mahler 
City Mayor 

gmahler@sweethomeor.gov 

Ray Towry City Manager 
rtowry@sweethomeor.gov 

City of Sweet Home - City Hall 
1140 12th Avenue 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 
Phone: (541) 367-8969 FAX: (541) 367-5113 

This document addresses the needs of the citizens of the  
City of Sweet Home with Limited English Proficiency 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 77



City of Sweet Home Oregon Limited English Proficiency Plan 

Introduction 

The City of Sweet Home Oregon is situated in Linn County, Oregon with an approximate 
population of 9,065.  The city encompasses a multitude of services, including the Mayor and 
City Council, City Manager, Community Development, Finance, Parks and Recreation, Police, 
Public Works, and a Library. 
The population of Sweet Home is predominantly English speaking, with the largest minority 
language being Spanish1, and includes a variety of other Indo-European, Asian and Pacific 
Islander, and other languages.  English is the primary language of approximately 97.2% of the 
population, with 1.2% speaking Spanish. .09% speaking Asian and Pacific Island Languages, 
and .7% speaking other Indo-European Languages as their primary language.  Of those 
languages other than English, 111 or 45.5% speak English less than “very well”. 
The City of Sweet Home (City) undertakes to ensure that persons with Limited English 
Proficiency (LEP) shall not be discriminated against nor denied meaningful access to, and 
participation in, the programs and services provided by the City.  In order to ensure meaningful 
access and participation for LEP persons, the City takes reasonable steps to see that language 
services are provided according to the provisions of the City’s LEP Plan as described below. 
The LEP Plan applies to all City administered programs, services and facilities, regardless of 
whether they receive Federal financial support or not.  However, the LEP Plan does not apply to 
the operation or administration of any properties or projects wherein the City is not the primary 
owner (i.e., the City is a funding agency and not the entity with primary control over said 
property) and the primary owner qualifies as recipient or sub-recipient of federal financial 
assistance.  
It is the intent of the City, in providing language services to LEP persons, to achieve a balance 
that ensures meaningful access to programs and services while not incurring undue burdens on 
City resources. 
Sweet Home’s City Manager’s office is the central coordinator for the LEP Plan and language 
services.  The office provides oversight for the implementation of the LEP Plan, coordinates and 
facilitates delivery of LEP language services, ensures that staff are informed on LEP services 
and procedures, and directs the monitoring and assessment of the LEP Plan’s effectiveness. 

Definitions: 

Limited English Proficiency person.  Any person who does not speak English as their primary 
language and who has a limited ability to read, write, speak, or understand English.  Such 
person or persons shall be entitled to language assistance at no cost to themselves with respect 
to a particular type of service, benefit, or encounter. 

Vital document.  Any document that contains information that is critical for obtaining or 
maintaining the services or benefits that are supported by Federal funds, or that are required by 
law.  Such documents may include but are not limited to applications, consent forms, notices of 
participant rights and responsibilities, disciplinary notices, letters or notices that require a 
response from the participant or beneficiary, legal notices, and notices advising LEP persons of 
the availability of free language services. 

1 See Exhibit A—Sweet Home Oregon Limited English Proficiency Population, US Census American Fact 
Finder 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 78



Interpretation.  The act of listening to spoken words in one language (the source) and orally 
translating it into another language (the target). 
Translation.  The replacement of a written text from one language into an equivalent written text 
in another language.  NOTE:  Some LEP persons cannot read in their own language and back 
up oral interpretation services may be needed for written documents. 
Four-Factor Assessment.  This is an assessment tool used by the City, as a recipient of federal 
funding, to determine the extent of its obligation to provide LEP services.  These four factors 
are:  (1) The number or proportion of LEP persons eligible to be served or likely to be 
encountered by the program or grantee;  (2) the frequency with which LEP persons come into 
contact with the program;  (3) the nature and importance of the program, activity, or service 
provided the program to people’s lives;  and (4) the resources available to the grantee/recipient 
and costs. 
Who is covered? 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d, et seq., and its implementing 
regulations provide that no person shall be subjected to discrimination on the basis of race, 
color, or national origin under any program or activity that receives Federal financial assistance. 
Under regulations implementing Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d, et seq. 
(Title VI), recipients of federal financial assistance have a responsibility to ensure meaningful 
access to their programs and activities by persons with LEP. The purpose of the LEP is to 
ensure that the City, as a recipient of Federal Funding, is complying with its Title VI 
responsibilities and that access to their programs or activities, normally provided in English, are 
accessible to LEP persons. 
In order to avoid discrimination against LEP persons on grounds of national origin, the City has 
taken adequate steps to ensure that LEP persons receive the language assistance necessary to 
afford them meaningful access to the programs, services, and information the City provides, 
free of charge. 
Pursuant to Executive Order 13166, the meaningful access requirement of the Title VI 
regulations and the four-factor analysis set forth in the LEP Guidance of the Federal Register 
(FR-4878-N-01) are to apply to programs and activities receiving federal assistance. Federal 
financial assistance includes grants, training, use of equipment, donations of surplus property, 
and other assistance. 
Federally assisted recipients are required to make reasonable efforts to provide language 
assistance to ensure meaningful access for LEP persons to the recipient’s programs and 
activities.  To do this, the recipient has: (1) conducted the four-factor assessment; (2) developed 
a language access plan (LAP); and (3) provided access to appropriate language assistance. 
Coverage under Title VI and Executive Order 13166 extends to all of a recipient’s programs or 
activities, (i.e., to all parts of a recipient’s operations).  This is true—even if only one part of the 
recipient receives the federal assistance. 
As the City of Sweet Home encompasses a variety of services, application of the Four-Factor 
analysis varies depending on the specific service. 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 79



 

Four-Factor Assessment 

1. Population Size of LEP Persons who Need Language Services Assistance 

The City has used the following methodology and data sources to identify and determine the 
number of LEP persons currently using the City’s services, the number of LEP persons in 
the City’s area of operations who may be eligible for programs and services and the 
particular languages used by both groups.  The City used various methods to identify LEP 
persons with whom they have contact.  These included: 

• Past experiences with LEP by City staff. 

• Latest Census Department data.  Census data has been reviewed and matched to 
the extent possible with the City area of operations.  When Census data is updated, 
it will be reviewed to identify commonly encountered languages other than English. 

Assessment:  Housing and Urban Development, in its final guidance for providing program 
access to LEP individuals, has detailed a ‘Safe Harbor’ where providing a certain level of 
translated materials for a LEP population of a specified size will “be considered strong 
evidence of compliance with the recipient’s written translation obligations.”  The City of 
Sweet Home has determined that, in regard to its LEP language populations, the Spanish 
LEP population is below both 5% and 1,000 individuals, and thus translated vital documents 
are not required.  The City of Sweet Home’s remaining LEP populations for each spoken 
language are also below 5%.  According to the ‘Safe Harbor’ Guidelines, any language 
population that falls below 50 individuals and 5% of the service population is not required to 
receive any written translations.  As the remaining LEP populations fall below this level, the 
City of Sweet Home is not required to provide any translated documents under ‘Safe Harbor’ 
guidelines to non-Spanish LEP individuals.  

2. Frequency of Contact with LEP Persons who Need Language Services Assistance 

Linn County is the primary provider of social services within Sweet Home and has the most 
contact with LEP persons who need language service assistance.  The majority of contact 
the City has with non-English speaking citizens is through Police Department stops and 
other activity.  Frequency of contact with LEP persons for other City services such as 
applications, consent forms, notices of participant rights and responsibilities, disciplinary 
notices, letters or notices that require a response from the participant or beneficiary, and 
public legal notices is relatively rare, less than once a year.  City staff indicates that 
generally, individuals with limited English proficiency will bring a family member or friend, 
who will translate. 
Assessment:  Need for LEP services approximates the percentage of Sweet Home residents 
with limited English proficiency—less than 1% of staff encounters or contacts.  Ongoing 
monitoring of LEP contact with the City occurs and should the level or difficulty of serving 
this population increase, the City is prepared to add resources. 

3. Nature and Importance of Programs and Service Utilized or Needed by LEP Persons 

The City recognizes that, within the range of programs and services it provides, some 
programs and services, such as those that directly impact the well-being of the local 
population, are of higher priority than others.  While it is the City’s intent to provide 
meaningful access to all participants and eligible persons, the availability of resources may 
limit the provision of language services in some instances. 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 80



Activities such as outreach, intake forms, leases, rules of occupancy, legal actions, life and 
safety notices, and the like have a high priority.  Information about and an understanding of 
these activities should be effectively communicated to all persons affected by them.  Other 
activities such as recreation programs, social activities, optional meetings, and related areas 
are of a lesser priority. 
Assessment:  Given that Police stops are generally where the City has the highest contact 
with LEP individuals, the City has designated translation services to be available during 
normal working hours within the Police Department.  For other services, the City provides on 
call translation services and public information in multiple languages on its website. 

4. Availability of Resources to LEP Persons Who Need Language Assistance 

The City of Sweet Home may contract with authorized interpreters who are available over 
the telephone.  Other sources for interpretation may include: 
 Qualified bilingual staff members of the City. 
 Individuals employed exclusively to perform interpretation services 
 Contracted in-person interpreters  
 Other qualified interpreters from other local agencies or organizations within the Sweet 
 Home Community 
Language assistance may be available from community volunteers who have demonstrated 
competence in their monolingual (direct) communication and/or in interpretation or 
translation as noted above and have been approved by the City to communicate with LEP 
individuals.  
Where qualified bilingual staff members or other authorized interpreters are unavailable to 
assist approved community volunteers who have demonstrated competence may be called 
upon when appropriate.  
Family and Friends of an LEP individual may offer to assist with communication or 
interpretation. 

Sweet Home’s website includes a Google Translate tab  which translates the public 
information into Chinese, Finnish, German, Spanish and Swedish.  
Assessment:  The City is both pro-active in providing persons with limited English 
proficiency public information about Sweet Home’s public services, and in having translation 
resources available to those having direct contact with City staff.  The City works to ensure 
that at a minimum, at least one bilingual-Spanish staff person is available during normal 
business hours, and to provide translation in other languages when arranged for in advance. 

 
City of Sweet Home Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Plan 

The City provides language services to LEP persons by a variety of methods based upon the 
relative numbers of such persons and the frequency of contacts or anticipated contacts. 
Reasonable steps are taken to accomplish this.  Specifically, this LEP Plan outlines the City’s 
approach to working with persons needing language assistance: 

I. Identification of LEP Individuals who Need Language Assistance:  Activities include: 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 81



• Posting of notices in City Hall and in separate lobbies of other City facilities accessible 
by the public.  These posted notices will be in commonly encountered languages and will 
encourage LEP persons needing language assistance to self-identify. 

• “Language Identification” cards (http://www.lep.gov/resources/ISpeakCards2004.pdf ) 
will be available in the languages identified in the City’s area of operations.  The cards 
will also be used by staff on a day-to-day basis to determine and document the need for 
particular language services during routine activities and encounters.   

• Notification to applicants for assistance, licensing, or permits that language services will 
be provided at no cost. 

• Periodic reviews with staff to determine if the needs of residents with limited English 
continue to be met. 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 82

http://www.lep.gov/resources/ISpeakCards2004.pdf


 

II. Provision of Language Assistance Measures:  Procedures and activities for the provision 
language assistance include: 
A. Types of Language Services Available 

A. 1. Written Translation Measures 

• Postings in conspicuous places in City Hall, Police Department Main Lobby, 
and any other City facility accessed by the public informing applicants or 
members of the general public that translation services are available at no 
charge to the individual who is seeking services or information regarding such 
services.  The City has a list of interpreters and translators for staff to use 
when language services are required for LEP persons. 

• Bi-lingual public notice communications and outreach.  The City also provides 
language services in the conduct of its web-based outreach efforts which are 
intended to make the general public aware of its programs and services.  In 
this manner, LEP persons who are a part of the population in the City’s area 
of operations have an equal opportunity to learn about the City’s programs 
and services and to access and participate in them. 

A. 2. Oral Translation Measures 

• The City shall strive to have bilingual staff available during normal business 
hours. Should the City not have bilingual Spanish speaking staff, the City will 
contract with a telephone interpretive service that will allow tenants, 
applicants or members of the general public who do not speak English to 
communicate with staff at the time they call or come into City Hall, the Police 
Department, and any other City facility regularly accessed by the public. 

• The City shall offer oral interpretation at no charge at meetings, events, and 
other activities, provided that the need is identified by the participant(s) at 
least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the event, dependent upon the availability 
of an interpreter for the requested language. 

A. 3. Additional Measures to be Considered and Used Based on an Assessment of 
Need 
The following list outlines potential future measures that could be undertaken, 
should the level of need for LEP services increase from the current assessment. 

• Use of and/or hiring bilingual staff to handle the majority of the verbal and 
written translation duties for the City.  (Essential in the daily operations.)  At 
the time of adoption of this LEP plan, 1 bilingual staff member is available 
during normal working hours. 

• Contracting with qualified interpreters and translators, either individually or 
through an interpreting service agency which provides such persons when 
other City employees are not available or not skilled. (Essential when 
accuracy and details are important or critical.)   

• Centralizing language services and/or sharing language services with another 
City if/when available. (If needed to minimize costs.) 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 83



• Use of telephone (or video conferencing) interpreter services. (If prompt 
delivery of interpretation services is required.) 

• Pooling resources and/or standardization of documents and forms.  (If 
needed to minimize costs.) 

B. Connecting Staff to Available Language Services Available 
City staff should never refuse service to an LEP individual who is requesting assistance, 
nor should they require an LEP individual to furnish an interpreter as a condition for 
receiving assistance. The City will make every reasonable effort to provide meaningful 
and timely assistance to LEP individuals through a variety of services.  
The City will use all reasonably available tools, such as language identification cards, 
when attempting to determine an LEP individual’s primary language.  
LEP individuals may choose to accept City provided LEP services at no cost or they may 
choose to provide their own. 
City provided LEP services may include but are not limited to the assistance methods 
described in this policy. 

C. Telephone System Protocols 
If City staff cannot understand a LEP caller, and a translator is not immediately available, 
the caller’s phone number is taken, and a bi-lingual interpreter/translator calls the 
individual back. 

D. Responding to Written Communications from LEP Persons 
The City will utilize a bi-lingual interpreter/translator to read and respond in the LEP’s 
language in written communications. 

E. Responding to In-Person Contact with LEP Persons 
Should staff be unable to communicate with a LEP person, the City’s bilingual 
interpreter/translator is contacted, and communications are either continued in-person or 
over the phone.  Should the interpreter/translator be unavailable, contact information for 
the individual will be recorded, including nature of the inquiry, and an 
interpreter/translator will re-contact the person. 

F. Ensuring the Competency of Interpreter and Translator Services 
The City makes every reasonable effort to assure that the language services it provides 
to LEP persons are of the highest quality and that the competency of interpreters and 
translators is appropriate to the situation.  This applies to both the use of internal 
bilingual employees and contracted interpreters and translators. 
1) Interpreters (outside the use of internal bilingual employees).  Oral interpretation of 

encounters, interviews, meetings and the like require a certain level of competency 
and professionalism on the part of the interpreter. These characteristics do not 
necessarily exist in a person who is simply bilingual.  Likewise, formal certification 
while helpful may not always be required.  Often the importance of the encounter or 
the consequences will direct the level of professionalism needed.  When using an 
interpreter, the City uses the following general criteria to ensure effective 
communications with LEP persons: 
a) Demonstrated proficiency in and ability to communicate information accurately in 

both English and in the other language and able to identify and employ the 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 84



appropriate mode of interpreting (consecutive, simultaneous, summarization, or 
sight translation). 

b) Knowledge in both languages of any specialized terms or concepts particular to 
the City programs or services and of any particularized vocabulary and 
phraseology used by the LEP person, or the ability to explain either in English or 
the necessary language, the specialized term(s), concept(s), particularized 
vocabulary or phraseology. 

c) Understanding of and ability to follow confidentiality and impartiality rules to the 
same extent that the City employee for whom they are interpreting or to the 
extent that their position requires or both. 

d) Understanding of and adherence to their role as interpreter without deviating into 
a role as counselor, legal advisor, or other role. 

e) Awareness of regionalisms (dialects) used by the LEP persons for whom they 
are interpreting.   

2) Translators (outside the use of internal bilingual employees).  When selecting 
translators, the list of criteria applied to determine competency and professionalism for 
interpreters above shall be applied to the extent that those criteria are appropriate.  If a 
staff member who speaks the necessary language is not available, the City shall obtain 
translation and interpretation services from a certified translation/interpretation service.  

III. Staff Training to Be Provided 
The City reviews its LEP Plan with staff.  The frequency of staff encounters with LEP 
persons determines the level of review.  All employees who are likely to have contact with 
LEP persons are informed of the City’s LEP Plan, and on how to work effectively with in-
person and telephone interpreters, and to understand the dynamics of interpretation among 
LEP providers and interpreters. 
Staff having the greatest contact are the first to be trained to effectively implement the LEP 
Plan.  Those staff having the least amount of contact with LEP persons, at a minimum, are 
trained to be fully aware of the Plan so that they may reinforce its importance and ensure 
implementation by other staff. 
LEP training is part of the orientation for all new employees who work with LEP persons.  
On-going employees receive an orientation on the LEP Plan. 

IV. Provision of Notice to LEP Persons 
The City provides appropriate notice to LEP persons and language groups of the availability 
of free language services that ensure meaningful access to programs and services provided 
by the City.  Notices in those appropriate languages informing LEP persons and groups 
shall be posted in common areas, offices, and anywhere that applications are taken.  These 
notices shall explain how to receive language services. 

V. LEP Plan Monitoring and Updating 
The City monitors implementation of the LEP Plan on an ongoing basis, making revisions to 
policies and procedures as may be required periodically.  The City also reviews (not less 
than annually) the overall effectiveness of its LEP Plan.  This review considers information 
from the following sources and criteria as well as other factors as may be appropriate: 
1) Changes in demographics including new language groups and changes in the proportion 

of existing language groups, types of services, and other needs. 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 85



2) Frequency of encounters with LEP persons.  Whether existing language services are 
meeting needs of LEP persons. 

3) Whether existing language services are meeting needs of LEP persons. 
4) Availability of new resources including technology. 
5) Whether identified sources for assistance are still available and viable. 
6) How well staff understand and have implemented the LEP Plan. 
7) Feedback from the community at large and from minority language groups and persons. 
Based upon findings of the periodic review, the City shall revise the LEP Plan to ensure its 
effectiveness in meeting the access and participation needs of LEP groups and persons.   

VI. Complaint Procedures and EO Monitoring 
For regularly encountered LEP language groups, LEP persons are provided notice of their 
opportunity to file a discrimination complaint in accordance with federal regulations.  For 
infrequently encountered LEP language groups, LEP persons shall be advised orally of the 
opportunity to file a discrimination complaint pursuant to the regulations. 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 86



 

Sweet Home Oregon Limited English Proficiency Population 

 

TOTAL POPULATION:  9,612 (2017 Population Estimate as of July 1, 2017) 

Population 5 years and over:  8,674 (+/-244) 

 

 
Estimate 

Margin of 
Error 

Percent 
Percent 
Margin 
of Error 

LANGUAGE SPOKEN AT HOME     

Population 5 years and over 8,674 +/-244 (x) (x) 

English only 8,430 +/-312 97.2% +/-2.0 

Language other than English 244 +/-173 2.8% +/-2.0 

Speak English less than "very well" 111 +/-122 45.5% +/-28.8 

Spanish 100 +/-84 1.2% +/-1.0 

Speak English less than "very well" 36 +/-43 36.0% +/-40.9 

Other Indo-European languages 64 +/-56 0.07% +/-.6 

Speak English less than "very well" 29 +/-43 45.3% +/-49.5 

Asian and Pacific Islander languages 80 +/-124 0.9% +/-1.4 

Speak English less than "very well" 46 +/-48 57.5% +/-55.8 

Other languages 0 +/-17 0.0% +/-0.4 

Speak English less than "very well" 0 +/-17 - ** 

 

US Census: American Fact Finder.   
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2013-2017 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 

Explanation of Symbols: 
• An '**' entry in the margin of error column indicates that either no sample observations or too few sample 

observations were available to compute a standard error and thus the margin of error. A statistical test is not 
appropriate. 

• An '-' following a median estimate means the median falls in the lowest interval of an open-ended distribution. 
• An '(X)' means that the estimate is not applicable or not available. 

 

 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 87



REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA:  
January 22, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Ray Towry, City Manager 
REVIEWED:   
 

TITLE: Planning Commission 
Appointments  
ATTACHMENTS:  
Applications submitted for the 
position of Planning 
Commission. 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
     RESOLUTION 
 X   MOTION 
      OTHER 

 
PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:  Appointments to the Planning Commission 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT: There are currently 3 vacancies on the Planning 
Commission.  The positions have been adverstised and applications received.  The 
Administration, Finance and Property Committee conducted 4 interviews on January 15, 
2019.  Their ranking matrix has been tallied, the Committee recommendation is to 
appoint Greg Korn, and Henry Wolthuis to the Sweet Home Planning Commission for 
terms to expire December 31, 2022. 
     
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:   Vacancies on the Planning Commission 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

1. Elected Officials 
2. Employees of the City 
3. Community Members 

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 

1. None Known 
 

ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: Appoint committee members to vacancies 
who are willing to serve a full term and available for scheduled meetings of the 
committee. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing 
2. Seek Additional Applicants 
3. Make a Motion to appoint other applicants to the Sweet Home Planning 

Commission to a four year term to expire December 31, 2022 
4. Make a Motion to appoint Greg Korn and Herny Wolthuis to the Sweet Home 

Planning Commission for a four year term to expire December 31, 2022 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

5. Option #4 Make a Motion to appoint Greg Korn and Henry Wolthuis to the Sweet 
Home Planning Commission for a four year term to expire December 31, 2022 
 

 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 88



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 89



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 90



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 91



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 92



REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
Jan. 22, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Chief Jeff Lynn 
REVIEWED:   
R. Towry, CM 

TITLE:   
RMS/CAD Software License 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
CMI Customer Agreement 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
     RESOLUTION 
_X  MOTION 
     OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:   
To review the contract associated for CMI Software Corp. (Justice Software), a third-party 
software company that provides record management and computer aided dispatch abilities for 
the Sweet Home Police Department.    
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
The Sweet Home Police Department has partnered with CMI for over 20 years to provide the 
Department’s record management system (RMS) and our computer aided dispatch (CAD) 
software. CMI Software Corp. has undergone a restructuring. As a result, a new contract with an 
updated fee structure has been presented.  

Legal counsel has reviewed this contract as to form. 

THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:    
In order to operate effectively, SHPD must maintain a RMS and CAD system. The RMS system 
allows for the documentation of the Department’s calls for service while the CAD system is 
utilized by our Dispatch Center to track incoming calls and the officer’s actions. An 
effective/efficient RMS/CAD system must be connected and work in unison with the other. 
 
Multiple companies exist that offer this type software. SHPD has been working with CMI for over 
20 years. During that time, numerous upgrades have taken place to keep the software 
“modernized”. CMI has chosen to restructure their company to meet some of the new 
challenges. As a result, their fee schedule, or contract price, has changed and will be 
increasing.  
 
The challenge is to maintain a modern, reliable CAD/RMS that will meet the needs of our 
department. SHPD has reviewed other software options, which included the Linn County SO 
and Albany PD’s new system. CMI offers one of the better end user experiences that we have 
reviewed. It is a very efficient software system for the employees to use. CMI does lack 
functionality on the administrative side of it. Basically, it’s not as easy to pull statistical reports as 
other software programs. The management and leadership of CMI has indicated that these 
issues are being addressed and should be dealt with during the next upgrade which should be 
out within a year.   
 

 
ISSUES & FINACIAL IMPACTS: 

1. Police Department – Recently, SHPD has been paying $4850 per year for CMI software. 
Based upon the size of our Agency, this will increase to $12,750 per year. 

2. Police Department – Should SHPD elect to switch RMS/CAD software providers, 
additional fees associated with data migration would be incurred which has been 
estimated at between $50,000 and $100,000.    
 
 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 93



 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Not Authorize SHPD to enter into the contract with CMI. 
2. Authorize SHPD to enter into the contract with CMI. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Option #2.  – Authorize SHPD to enter into the contract with CMI. 
 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 94



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 95



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 96



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 97



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 98



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 99



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 100



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 101



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 102



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 103



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 104



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 105



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 106



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 107



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 108



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 109



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 110



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 111



Greg Springman
Public Works Director, City of Sweet Home

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 112



 Since June 1, 2018, Public Works staff have made 
28 water repairs, including 10th Ave. Reservoir.

 American Leak Detection as identified 68 water 
leaks.

 Staff has completed 15 water repairs identified by 
American Leak Detection to date.

 Estimated water loss – 90,000 gals/day saved to 
date by repairs.

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 113



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 114



Before Repair After Repair

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 115



Before Repair Repair Exposed

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 116



Before Repair After Repair

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 117



Before Repair After Repair

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 118



Before Repair After Repair

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 119



Before Repair After Repair

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 120



Before Repair After Repair

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 121



Before Repair After Repair

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 122



Before Repair After Repair

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 123



Before Repair After Repair

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 124



Before Repair After Repair

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 125



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 126



CITY OF SWEET HOME
Quarterly Projections
(Unaudited, non-GAAP, For projection purposes only)

 % chg
Variance Chg since

YTD Notes Prior Yr. Adopted Projected from Adp. Prior Notes
Actual Actual Budget 6/30/2019  Budget Report

Executive

Other 0 n/a n/a 0 0 0 0 0
Total Revenues 0 n/a n/a 0 0 0 0 0

Personnel Services (131,513) 50% 5% (256,739) (260,598) (260,598) 0 0
Materials, Services & Capital (21,969) 2% -15% (47,165) (1,255,989) (1,255,989) 0 0

Total Expenditures (153,482) 10% 1% (303,903) (1,516,587) (1,516,587) 0 0
Net from Operations (153,482) (303,903) (1,516,587) (1,516,587) 0 0

Finance

Fees 78,526 50% 18% (1) 177,777 155,612 155,612 0 0
Other 1,726 6% -87% (2) 31,233 28,535 28,535 0 0

Total Revenues 80,252 44% 1% 209,011 184,147 184,147 0 0

Personnel Services (279,074) 51% -4% (603,553) (582,312) (548,570) 33,742 0
Materials, Services & Capital (56,411) 44% 14% (3) (119,944) (128,950) (128,950) 0 0

Total Expenditures (335,485) 50% -1% (723,497) (711,262) (677,520) 33,742 0
Net from Operations (255,234) (514,487) (527,115) (493,373) 33,742 0

Community & Economic Development

Fees 9,219 45% 34% (4) 15,247 12,420 20,413 7,993 7,993 (4)
Other 85,022 31% 6% (5) 180,596 150,023 274,147 124,124 55,467 (5)

Total Revenues 94,241 32% 8% 195,843 162,443 294,560 132,117 63,460

Personnel Services (184,280) 50% 21% (328,725) (486,124) (368,746) 117,378 (19,129) (6)
Materials, Services & Capital (73,221) 28% 260% (7) (55,856) (611,302) (258,841) 352,461 352,461 (8)

Total Expenditures (257,501) 41% 49% (384,581) (1,097,426) (627,587) 469,839 333,331
Net from Operations (163,260) (188,738) (934,983) (333,027) 601,956 396,791

Library

Property Taxes 384,722 93% 18% (9) 351,762 381,043 413,202 32,159 24,614 (9)
Fees 2,497 45% 5% 4,731 5,500 5,500 0 2,127
Other 8,124 74% 51% (10) 23,674 5,000 11,000 6,000 6,000 (10)

Total Revenues 395,344 92% 18% 380,167 391,543 429,702 38,159 8,127

Personnel Services (102,973) 49% 26% (170,808) (208,567) (208,567) 0 0
Materials, Services & Capital (60,536) 21% 21% (108,251) (289,708) (289,708) 0 0

Total Expenditures (163,509) 33% 24% (279,059) (498,275) (498,275) 0 0
Net from Operations 231,835 101,109 (106,732) (68,573) 38,159 8,127

As of December 31, 2018
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

ProjectionsBudgetYear-to-Date 

Current/YTD as
a % of

Projected YTD
Prior

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 127



CITY OF SWEET HOME
Quarterly Projections
(Unaudited, non-GAAP, For projection purposes only)

 % chg
Variance Chg since

YTD Notes Prior Yr. Adopted Projected from Adp. Prior Notes
Actual Actual Budget 6/30/2019  Budget Report

As of December 31, 2018
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

ProjectionsBudgetYear-to-Date 

Current/YTD as
a % of

Projected YTD
Prior

Police

Property Taxes 2,589,346 93% 18% (9) 2,364,203 2,567,909 2,779,041 211,132 153,803 (9)
Fees 90 30% -36% 695 300 300 0 0
Other 25,004 26% -62% (2) 149,959 94,431 94,431 0 0

Total Revenues 2,614,440 91% 16% 2,514,857 2,662,640 2,873,772 211,132 0

Personnel Services (1,047,319) 50% -6% (2,205,566) (2,219,878) (2,105,765) 114,113 0
Materials, Services & Capital (135,102) 31% -11% (11) (301,563) (433,584) (433,584) 0 0

Total Expenditures (1,182,421) 47% -6% (2,507,129) (2,653,462) (2,539,349) 114,113 0
Net from Operations 1,432,019 7,727 9,178 334,422 325,244 0

PW Parks

Fees 0 n/a n/a 0 0 0 0 0
Other 779 53% -46% 2,791 3,166 1,459 (1,707) (1,707)

Total Revenues 779 53% -46% 2,791 3,166 1,459 (1,707) (1,707)

Personnel Services (99,040) 51% 78% (129,853) (195,927) (195,927) 0 0
Materials, Services & Capital (91,419) 34% 693% (12) (53,314) (270,486) (270,486) 0 0

Total Expenditures (190,459) 41% 184% (183,167) (466,413) (466,413) 0 0
Net from Operations (189,680) (180,376) (463,247) (464,954) (1,707) (1,707)

PW Water

User Fees 1,283,067 54% 8% 2,109,892 2,367,349 2,367,349 0 0
Fees 40,589 64% 7% 63,459 10,250 63,459 53,209 0
Other 865 50% 322% 780 0 1,730 1,730 1,730

Total Revenues 1,324,522 54% 8% 2,174,131 2,377,599 2,432,538 54,939 1,730

Personnel Services (205,374) 50% 21% (332,759) (445,031) (412,712) 32,319 32,319 (13)
Materials, Services & Capital (293,523) 20% -21% (849,818) (1,480,640) (1,480,640) 0 0
Debt (501,216) 100% 1% (498,591) (501,216) (501,216) 0 0

Total Expenditures (1,000,112) 42% -4% (1,681,168) (2,426,887) (2,394,568) 32,319 32,319
Net from Operations 324,409 492,964 (49,288) 37,970 87,258 34,049

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 128



CITY OF SWEET HOME
Quarterly Projections
(Unaudited, non-GAAP, For projection purposes only)

 % chg
Variance Chg since

YTD Notes Prior Yr. Adopted Projected from Adp. Prior Notes
Actual Actual Budget 6/30/2019  Budget Report

As of December 31, 2018
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

ProjectionsBudgetYear-to-Date 

Current/YTD as
a % of

Projected YTD
Prior

PW Wastewater

User Fees 1,470,293 47% 21% 2,674,840 3,108,772 3,108,772 0 0
Fees 11,339 39% -23% 24,703 13,500 29,104 15,604 0
Other 0 0% n/a 0 2,000,000 708,725 (1,291,275) (1,291,275) (14)

Total Revenues 1,481,632 39% 20% 2,699,543 5,122,272 3,846,601 (1,275,671) (1,291,275)

Personnel Services (165,342) 54% -23% (405,733) (307,014) (307,014) 0 0
Materials, Services & Capital (554,220) 35% 46% (825,207) (1,578,285) (1,578,285) 0 0
Debt (259,782) 30% -40% (15) (881,177) (877,769) (877,769) 0

Total Expenditures (979,344) 35% -5% (2,112,116) (2,763,068) (2,763,068) 0 0
Net from Operations 502,288 587,427 2,359,204 1,083,533 (1,275,671) (1,291,275)

PW Storm

User Fees 31,360 51% 2% 61,951 61,962 61,962 0 0
Fees 0 n/a n/a 0 0 0 0 0
Other 0 0% n/a 0 1,616 1,616 0 0

Total Revenues 31,360 49% 2% 61,951 63,578 63,578 0 0

Personnel Services (48,580) 76% 31% (16) (73,783) (63,891) (63,891) 0 0
Materials, Services & Capital 0 0% -100% (4,490) (61,930) (61,930) 0 0

Total Expenditures (48,580) 39% 30% (78,273) (125,821) (125,821) 0 0
Net from Operations (17,220) (16,322) (62,243) (62,243) 0 0

PW Streets

Gas Tax 371,427 56% 59% 482,445 658,843 658,843 0 0
Other 3 0% -98% 180 13,479 13,479 0 0

Total Revenues 371,430 55% 59% 482,625 672,322 672,322 0 0

Personnel Services (151,137) 40% -4% (16) (299,110) (379,776) (379,776) 0 0
Materials, Services & Capital (73,066) 8% 11% (115,468) (894,100) (894,100) 0 0

Total Expenditures (224,204) 18% 0% (414,578) (1,273,876) (1,273,876) 0 0
Net from Operations 147,227 68,047 (601,554) (601,554) 0 0

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 129



CITY OF SWEET HOME
Quarterly Projections
(Unaudited, non-GAAP, For projection purposes only)

 % chg
Variance Chg since

YTD Notes Prior Yr. Adopted Projected from Adp. Prior Notes
Actual Actual Budget 6/30/2019  Budget Report

As of December 31, 2018
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

ProjectionsBudgetYear-to-Date 

Current/YTD as
a % of

Projected YTD
Prior

Non-Departmental

Property Taxes 619,253 90% 5% 636,835 672,294 690,743 18,449 0
Fees 239,691 35% 6% 667,664 602,963 678,686 75,723 75,723 (17)
Other 208,244 39% -16% 554,346 533,765 533,765 0 0

Total Revenues 1,067,188 56% 0% 1,858,846 1,809,022 1,903,194 94,172 75,723

Personnel Services (69,490) 49% 126% (61,436) (140,903) (140,903) 0 0
Materials, Services & Capital (489,178) 64% 9% (774,974) (769,914) (769,914) 0 0

Total Expenditures (558,668) 61% 16% (836,410) (910,817) (910,817) 0 0
Net from Operations 508,520 1,022,435 898,205 992,377 94,172 75,723

Notes:
(1) Court fees have increased 24% over the prior year. No increase anticipated in total projected revenue.
(2) Current year other revenue less than prior year due to timing of interest distributions. Awaiting completion of annual audit prior to interest distributions.
(3) Current year Materials, Services and capital higher than prior year due to increase in Springbrook annual payments.
(4) Planning fees increased 44% over the prior year resulting in an increase in the projected increase in Fees Revenue.
(5) Building Permits have increased 12% over the prior year resulting in an increased projection for the fiscal year.
(6) Additional savings in CED Personnel Services due to the hiring of an Associate Planner vs the budgeted Planning Services Manager and savings in group insurance rates.
(7) Current year Materials, Services and Capital higher than prior year due to payments to NW Code Professionals for Building Inspections, CEIP and office equipment needs.
(8) Projected spending reduced due to anticipated spending on the Community Exterior Improvement Program.
(9) Property taxes increased 14% from prior year due to the lessening of compression as property rates rise within the city.
(10) Projected revenue in Library Other Revenue increased due to the receipt of grants not previously budgeted.
(11) Materials, Services and Capital burn rate lower than prior fiscal years. Anticipating purchase of replacement radios for the Police Department not figured in five-year average.
(12) Parks spending in current year higher than prior year due to including Parks in Public Works general expenses and Parks projects planned for current year.
(13) Projected Personnel Services expense reduced due to savings in group insurance rates amongst employees.
(14) Projected Wastewater Other Revenue reduced due to timing of draw down of lottery funds for the Wastewater Treatment Plant. Remaininng $1.3 million to be received in FY20.
(15) Current year Wastewater Debt expense lower than prior year due to timing of debt payments.
(16) Storm Personnel Services burn rate and current year expense higher than prior years due to incorrect distribution of employee wages. Correction anticipated for future quarters.
(17) Non-Departmental Projected Fees Revenue increased due to higher receipt in current year of franchise fees.

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 130



SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

January 15, 2019 

The meeting of the Administration and Finance Committee was called to order at 5:30 p.m. in the 
City Hall Annex.   

Staff Present: City Manager Ray Towry, City Engineer Joe Graybill and Recording Secretary 
Julie Fisher 

Committee Present: Councilor Goble, Mayor Mahler (Alternate Committee Member), Councilor 
Trask   

Committee Absent: Councilor Gerson 

The purpose of the Administration, Finance and Property Committee meeting was to interview 
and rank the candidates for the Planning Commission and discuss the HVAC at the new City Hall. 

Six candidates submitted applications for three vacancies on the Planning Commission.  Four of 
the applicants were available to interview.  Each applicant was asked the same series of 
questions.  The committee members ranked each applicant based upon their answers to the 
questions of the Planning Commission duties.  The committee’s recommendation will be 
submitted to City Council during their regular meeting on January 22, 2019 for appointment. 

City Engineer Joe Graybill spoke to the committee on a proposed change order for a Variable 
Refrigerant Flow (VRF) Distributed Heat Exchange System.  He explained there is a higher initial 
cost, however there is a significant return over time.  City Engineer Graybill explained the 
additional change order cost of $37k for equipment, $10k for materials and $2k for labor.  The 
total change order is $51,191.00.  The committee discussed different options and by consensus 
gave approval for the City Manager to move forward however asked that staff would verify if 5 
units were needed or if 4 would be enough and to see if there could be any additional savings. 

With no further business the meeting adjourned at 7:04 p.m. 

The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council Administration and Finance 
meeting on January 15, 2019. 

City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 131



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 132



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 133



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 134



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 135



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 136



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 137



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 138



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 139



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 140



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 141



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 142



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 143



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 144



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 145



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 146



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 147



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 148



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 149



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 150



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 151



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 152



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 153



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 154



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 155



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 156



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 157



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 158



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 159



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 160



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 161



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 162



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 163



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 164



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 165



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 166



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 167



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 168



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 169



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 170



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 171



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 172



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 173



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 174



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 175



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 176



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 177



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 178



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 179



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 180



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 181



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 182



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 183



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 184



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 185



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 186



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 187



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 188



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 189



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 190



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 191



City Council Packet 01-22-19 pg. 192


	(A) City Council Agenda 1-22-19
	(C)(a)(1) Council Minutes 1-8-19
	(F)(a)(1)RCA VR18-07 Appeal (12-31-18)
	(F)(a)(2) VR18-07 Staff Report for CC with attachments
	(F)(b)(1) RCA - Narcotics Supplemental
	(F)(b)(2) Narcotics Supplemental Resolution
	(F)(c)(1) RCA - Revised LEP
	(F)(c)(2) LEP Draft Changes Tracked
	(F)(c)(3) Res. #4 for 2019 LEP Plan
	(F)(c)(4) City of Sweet Home LEP 2019
	(F)(d)(0) RCA - Appointment Planning Commission
	(F)(d)(3) Greg Korn PC Application
	(F)(d)(6) Henry Wolthuis PC Application
	(F)(e)(1) RCA - CMI Justice - 2019
	(F)(e)(2) CMI Contract
	(F)(f)(1) Leak Repair Update Presentation 012219
	(H)(c)(i) SH Dept Rept fy19
	(I)(1) 2018.12.19 Park and Tree Committee Meeting_Draft
	City Council 01-15-19 Admin & Finance



